FINANCIAL SERVICES CONTRACT, RFP2-37159(PLW)

QUESTIONS FROM INDUSTRY REGARDING THE FINAL RFP

1. Is the Past Performance Data (Volume II) still due to be submitted two weeks prior to the proposal date and if so, do you require the original and eight copies at that time?

Response:  The Past Performance questionnaire from prior customers is due two weeks before the final proposal due date.  Please see website for current status of solicitation.  Past Performance Proposal (Volume II), in eight copies, is due with the solicitation on or before the closing date.  

2. Is the Wage Determination Schedule available at this time?

Response:  The current Wage Determination Schedule (Attachment J) is posted on the website. 

3. RFP Section/Paragraph/Clause: Section C, SOW Paragraph 4.2.3.1.Performance Standards (for Budget Execution Services)

Question:   Our question pertains to the processing of funding documents.  We would like to know how NASA defines a “rush” job?  Also, can you tell us how many of the total invoices are considered rush?  

Response:  A rush job for budget execution services is defined in the SOW Paragraph 4.2.3.1. A rush job does not apply to invoices for this section. 

Voucher examination services (invoices) in Paragraph 4.1.1.1 makes no reference to rush jobs.  

4. RFP Section/Paragraph/Clause: Section C, Attachment D, Performance Requirements Summary

Question:   a) Can you please clarify as to whether the numbers shown under the Estimated Workload Column (Column 5) are intended to be per month, or per year?  

Response:  Where not specifically stated, the estimates are per year.

b) We understand that the numbers of persons shown under Column 6 of this same chart is provided for bidding purposes.  However, in an attempt to understand the final magnitude of the costs (or ceiling value) of work to be ordered under this contract, and write an appropriate phasing plan, can you please clarify as to whether or not the estimated 41 persons shown are the maximum number of persons that the government anticipates that it may employ under this effort, or just what will be ordered from the on-set.   For instance, in order to properly build our phase-in plan, we need to know if the government wants us to price our phase-in with placing all 41 people in 30 days, or if there is an anticipated task order number that we should use instead.  This concern is raised by what is written in the SOW under paragraph 3.2.  How do the CTOs relate to the staffing expressed in Attachment D?  And how do you want these CTOs estimated for bidding purposes if they are not part of the estimate expressed in Attachment D? 

Response:  Attachment D to the SOW is provided for information only.  This is a performance based contract.  The bidder is responsible for determining the resources necessary to meet the requirements.   

5. RFP Section/Paragraph/Clause: Section G, Clause G.2-Award Fee for Service Contract (NFS 1852.216-76)  

Question:  Subparagraph (f)(1) states, “If applicable, provisional award fee payments will be made to the contractor on a monthly basis”. Can you please define what NASA would consider terms that cover “if applicable”.   We are trying to assess the impact of the risks associated with the award fee possibly not being paid for quite some time (approximately 8+ months after the start of an award fee period – which represents a significant carrying charge (interest)) after work is performed if provisional award fee payments are not made.   Can you tell us if allowing provisional award fee payments are the norm or generally the exception?  More specifically will ARC pay provisional award fee?

Response:  NASA must comply with NFS 1852.216-76.  In accordance with this clause, the NASA cannot determine provisional award fee until completion of the initial award fee period.  

In addition, we would like to inquire as to why the government did not consider allowing a base fee in this effort.  It seems that given the size of the contract and the impact on what a very small 8(a) contractor must carry in payroll until a payment is received, that by allowing a base fee in the effort it would help to cover the risks associated with covering those carrying costs.  In your response we would like you to consider the amount of costs the contractor will have to float through its line of credit in the payment process.  At a nominal $37 Million over five years the successful offeror will be required to cover over $600K per month.  This means that before payment of its invoices (assuming very timely payment) over $1.2 Million Dollars will be floated by the winner’s LOC and the interest for this will be an unallowable expense.

We recommend a 3% base fee be allowed.

Response: NASA is not permitted to issue a performance based contract with a base fee.

6. RFP Section/Paragraph/Clause: Section G, Clause G.3-Submission of Vouchers for Payment (NASSA 1852.216-87)  

Question:  When reading this paragraph we are led to believe that NASA requires contractors to submit separate vouchers for cost and fee?  Is our understanding correct?  If provisional award fee payments are allowed, would we still be required to submit two vouchers for the same task or could we bill for fee with our regular invoice?  Please clarify. 

Response:  Separate vouchers for cost and fee are required.  

7. RFP Section/Paragraph/Clause: Section F.2 Period of Performance 

Question:   For planning purpose, since the current contract expires on or about 12 September 2001, should we anticipate that the phase in period shall begin 30 days prior to that date? 

Response:  Phase-in begins on the date of contract award. 

8. RFP Section/Paragraph/Clause: Section L, Clause L-8, Estimated Staffing  

Question:  This paragraph states “These estimates are provided for bidding purposes only since the exact skill mix and work distribution are dependent on task or delivery orders issued after contract initiation.  The offeror shall, for proposal purposes, utilize the Government estimates for the hours, skill mix, and skill categories”.  This paragraph references back to Attachment D of the SOW.  I see in attachment D where you cite approximate man-years per SOW paragraph, However, I do not see where it defines the hours, skill mix, or skill categories.    For instance, for SOW paragraphs 4.2.1 there are 24 persons estimated.  In order for the contractor to provide an estimate in accordance with this clause, shouldn’t the government be telling us what the mix of personnel is in the SOW section, the number of hours per person (as it can differ between contractors)?    

Response:  Please see response to #4 above.

9. RFP Section/Paragraph/Clause: Section L, Clause L-10 (a)(3)(iii) Contract Management  

Question:  Subparagraph b of this section doesn’t seem to map to any of the evaluation factors that are shown in M.2(b)(iii).  Is there a mistake?  

Response:  Please see M.2.3 (Management Approach).iii(a) (Contract Management)  

10. RFP Section/Paragraph/Clause: Section L, Clause L-10 (b)(5)(a)(1) Prior Customer Evaluations 

Question:  In Line six of this subparagraph, it indicates that we are to submit prior customer evaluations at a “(Maximum of 5 per proposal)”.  Then in the ninth line it indicates “The offeror may provide questionnaires to as many customers of similar contracts as it deems necessary to establish a record of past performance”.  Can you please clarify if this means we can submit only up to five, or if we can submit more than 5, or if it means that we have the flexibility to submit say only 1-4 evaluations but potentially be given full credit for this factor if the government finds the relevance and complexity of those submitted evaluations overwhelmingly support the full rating.   

Response:  The offeror shall determine the number of questionnaires to be submitted with a maximum of 5 per proposal.

11. RFP Section/Paragraph/Clause: Section L, Clause L-10 (b)(5)(a)(1) Prior Customer Evaluations and Section K, Clause K.4, Small Business Program Representations 

Question:  We understand that the government must assess the capability of an offeror to successfully perform the services under this contract.  To do so, a government contracting officer looks to the contractors past performance to assist in this determination.  In this effort, the government is asking for customer evaluations to be submitted on relevant contracts that are greater in value than $5M.  However, given that the size standard for this effort is at $7M, are you not unnecessarily limiting your competition given the high dollar threshold for Customer Surveys, and the low small business size standard?    It wouldn’t seem likely that there would be a very large pool of  8(a) contractors that are small enough to fit into the size standard, and large enough to have the 5 references for contracts each over $5M in value each without bringing on some relatively larger subcontractors.   I would think that the government would like to maximize the competition for this effort.  We feel that if you brought the threshold in Section L down to say $4M and require that at least 3 of the 5 past performance references be submitted by the prime contractor it would seem that you would end up with a better assessment of the primes capability.  It seems that NASA should be just as interested in the numbers of contracts and employees that a company can manage successfully, and not be so hard set to limit them to the $5M threshold.  

Response:  The RFP is being conducted in accordance with 8a regulations.  The Government is not limiting competition. 

12. RFP Section/Paragraph/Clause: Section M, Clause M-3 Weighting and Scoring 

Question:  Subparagraph (f) states “(f) Pursuant to NFS 1815.305(a)(3)(B), the Mission Suitability Factor score will be adjusted downward by a specified number of points depending upon the percentage difference (positive or negative) between the Government estimate of probable cost and the offeror's proposed cost, “. Can you please clarify what is meant by “the Government estimate of probable cost”?  Is this the amount that the Government gets as a result of performing cost realism, or is this related to the government’s estimate of cost shown in the award fee plan?  

Response: This is the Government’s estimate as a result of performing cost realism.

13. RFP Section/Paragraph/Clause: Award Fee Plan 

Question:  Item B.3 indicates that the government estimate of the costs for this effort is  $37,000,000.  Is that $37M based on the 41 bodies estimated in Attachment D of the SOW, or does it include additional bodies and work that may be ordered through the use of CTOs as stated in the SOW and added at some later date?    

Response:  The award fee plan is posted for informational purposes only.  The award fee plan, the RFP, the Government estimate and the cost realism document are all separate documents. 
14. Does Section I.3 mean that a "large" business is disqualified from submitting (and winning) a bid?
Response:  A large business may not be the prime contractor on this contract.
15. We request a two week extension in the due date of proposals as a result of the Conflict of Interest Clauses, Sections H2 and H5.

Response:  As a result of questions from industry regarding the Organizational Conflict of Interest Clause (H.5), the Ames Research Center's Office of the Chief Counsel is reviewing the clause.  An extension to the due date for proposals will be provided when the review has been completed. The current status of the solicitation is posted on the web site. 

16. I understand that a letter was sent out recently to all prospective offerors that listed some changes. Would you be so kind as to fax me a copy of that letter if at all possible?

Response:  All information regarding this RFP is posted to the NAIS web page, which is the method used to disseminate information regarding the RFP.  

17. What is the deadline for submitting questions with respect to Final RFP? I understand that proposal submission deadline is May 31st.
Response:  The deadline for submitting questions is the final due date for proposals.  
18.  Do you plan to hold a pre-proposal conference? If so when and where?

Response:  No

19. When is the Past Performance Information Due? Is it due before the bid submission deadline or is it required to be submitted along with the proposal?

Response:  Please see question #1 above.

20. Please refer to Section C, 6.3, Attachment C, Reports List.  The first report listed, "Travel Vouchers in Process", state a frequency of "Weekly".  However, the "Due Date" states "January 15th of each year covering the preceding calendar year".  Are these reports due weekly and if so, when?  Is there an annual report due on January 15th for the open vouchers for the preceding calendar year?

Response:  The frequency of the Travel Vouchers in Process report is weekly.  The due date is the following Tuesday by 12:00 noon.    

21.  Please refer to Section L.1, Solicitation Provisions Incorporated by Reference.  This section states "The offeror is cautioned that the listed provisions may include blocks that must be completed by the offeror and submitted with its quotation or offer."  Per this paragraph, it also states "Upon request, the Contracting Officer will make their full text available."  Please tell us exactly which clauses have blocks that must be completed by the offeror, and provide those clauses.

Response:  Please refer to the RFP to determine the exact clauses that need to be completed by the offeror.    

22. In Section C, paragraph 3.1 (Contract Management), item (6) page 11 states  "the Contractor shall prepare an Information Technology (IT) security plan that shall be incorporated into the contract".  Please clarify the scope of this requirement?  Is the Security Plan intended to be an all-encompassing document?  If so how does   this fit in with enterprise systems rollout or is it limited to the use of PCs within an organization or an  IT plan for the offerors company?

Response:  Please see NFS 1852.204-76, at http://www.hq.nasa.gov/office/procurement/regs/nfstoc.htm.  

23.  In Section C, paragraph 4.1.9 (Systems Accounting Services) page 16 states "the Contractor will support the Center's current legacy system".  Does this mean (a) the contractor personnel interface with systems as system users or (b) does it mean the technical, programming support of these systems?

Response: The information provided in Section 4.1.9 consists of examples of the type of work to be performed.  The contract task order will provide details of the task requirements. Programming of systems is not anticipated.  

24  Also, in the same Section referenced in item 23 above, there are tasks that are typically performed by systems professionals--data cleansing and reconciliation, tracking and reporting cleanup metrics, and systems analysis.  This implies that the contractor will have an intimate knowledge of legacy systems in order to perform  the task and they will have a high degree of systems skills.  Please explain if this is the intent.

Response:  An intimate knowledge of the Ames legacy systems is not required.  The offeror should determine the appropriate skill mix and personnel qualifications to meet the requirements in Section 4.1.9.  

 25. In Section C, paragraph 4.2.1 (Budget Operation Services) page 17 implies the Contractor will develop spreadsheets to support the budgeting process.  Is this   outside the "formal" system operation?  The IFMP modules include a budgeting module.  Will the budgeting data get input into several different places?

Response:  Yes, this is outside the formal system operation.  The business process changes resulting from the implementation of the IFMP system are still in the development stage.  They will be provided to the successful bidder as soon as they are available.   

26  The RFP implies the winning bidder is required to report metrics on most of the functions identified in the RFP.  This reads like a separate effort outside of the normal  formal systems interface.  We would assume most of these metrics would be obtainable from the NASA provided enterprise systems that contractor personnel are utilizing. If separate metrics accounting is required, it would seem that any effort outside of the "formal" system could lead to inconsistencies that will be difficult to reconcile. Could you elaborate on how the incumbent contractor is meeting this requirement?

Response:  Please see Attachment D to the Statement of Work for the Method of Surveillance outlined for each SOW element. 

27. Please refer to Section C.5.1.1, Briefings/Reporting for Phase-In Period.  The RFP states “Fifteen (15) calendar days from the beginning of the thirty (30) calendar phase-in period…”; however, Section F.2(a) states “The phase-in period of performance of this contract shall be for 30 days from the effective date of this contract.”  Does the 30 day phase-in period start on the date of contract award?  If not, what is the anticipated time period between contract award and the start of the 30 day phase-in period?

Response:  Yes.  The 30 day phase-in period begins on the effective date of the contract award.  However, the incoming contractor shall present a written status report including a schedule for completing the phase-in plan within 15 calendar days from the award date of the contract.

